FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 11/14/2018 9:38 AM BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

96513-7

No. 76543-4-1

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION ONE

JOSEPH PADGETT,

Petitioner/Appellant,

v.

DARLA PADGETT,

Respondent.

PETITION FOR REVIEW BY THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

Sharon J. Blackford, WSBA # 25331 Attorney for Petitioner/Appellant

SHARON BLACKFORD PLLC

600 Stewart Street, Ste. 400 Seattle, Washington 98101 sharon@washingtonappellatelaw.com 206/459.0441

A. <u>INTRODUCTION</u>

This is a case of first impression. Mr. Padgett has been subjected to eight years of domestic violence restraints including firearm restrictions although he has never been found to have committed any crime, violation, or act of domestic violence. While a court is authorized under RCW 26.50.060(1)(f) (Domestic Violence Prevention) to impose terms in an order of protection as it "deems necessary for the protection of the petitioner," it has been generally assumed that no such order may be issued at all absent at least one act of domestic violence. See RCW 26.50.020(1): "Any person may seek relief under this chapter by filing a petition with a court alleging that the person has been the victim of domestic violence committed by the respondent." Yet no case or statute explicitly states that there must be a finding of at least one act of domestic violence in order for the court to have authority to impose protection under RCW 26.50.060(1)(f). Review should be granted to address this gap in the law.

The paucity of guidance spelling out grounds, factors, or standards authorizing modification or termination of a domestic violence order was noted by this Court in *Freeman v. Freeman*, 169 Wn.2d 664, 239 P.3d 557 (2010). This Court characterized *Freeman* as a case of first impression because it existed in a statutory "vacuum." 169 Wn. 2d at 672. There, this

Court held among other things that the in the absence of a new act of domestic violence, the basis for the "victim's" fear of recurrence of domestic violence must be reasonable. *Id.* at 675.

This case exists in a similar vacuum because no case or statute requires that an act of domestic violence be committed as a prerequisite to imposing orders under RCW 26.50.060(1)(f). Resolving this issue is a matter of significant public interest given the volume of domestic violence orders issued in our state. This case is also in direct conflict with *Freeman* because in both *Freeman* and this case, the ex-wife's fear was based solely on unexplained minor occurrences with no connection to the restrained person. This case is even more egregious than *Freeman* because the restrained person in *Freeman* had committed domestic violence, where here Mr. Padgett has not.

Further, this case raises an important Second Amendment issue that this Court must resolve. The orders restrict Mr. Padgett from possessing firearms and require that his ex-wife retain his firearms "until the criminal proceedings [against] him are terminated and he is allowed to possess firearms." CP 6. The failure to terminate these orders upon request

¹ Mr. Padgett uses the word "victim" in quotes here because no court ever determined that Mrs. Padgett was a victim of any domestic violence by Mr. Padgett. No disrespect to actual victims is intended.

when Mr. Padgett was cleared of all criminal activity violates his Second Amendment right to bear arms. In the absence of any finding of domestic violence or other misconduct or criminal record, the required "extremely strong public-interest justification" for restraining him from bearing arms is completely absent. *District of Columbia v. Heller* holds that the core of the Second Amendment is "the right of law-abiding, responsible citizens to use arms in defense of hearth and home." *Ezell v. City of Chicago* holds that when the person is a law-abiding, responsible citizen, "a severe burden on the core Second Amendment right of armed self-defense will require an extremely strong public-interest justification and a close fit between the government's means and its end." Such justification is lacking here.

This Court should accept review as it is a matter of substantial public interest to ensure that citizens are not restrained in the absence of a supporting factual finding. It is also in the public's interest that this Court address the statutory gap in RCW 26.50.060(1)(f). Further, this Court should resolve the conflict between Division I's opinion in this case and this Court's decision in *Freeman*. Finally, this Court should resolve the

² *District of Columbia v. Heller*, 554 U.S. 570, 635, 128 S.Ct. 2783 171 L.Ed.2d 637 (2008).

³ Ezell v. City of Chicago, 651 F.3d 684, 708 (7th Cir. 2011).

constitutional issue of whether a finding of domestic violence is necessary to support restriction of Second Amendment rights when the restriction is requested based on claimed domestic violence.

B. PETITIONER'S IDENTITY

Petitioner Joseph Padgett is the Appellant at the Court of Appeals and was the Respondent in the underlying divorce action. He was the moving party in the unsuccessful CR 60(b) motion to terminate the domestic violence restraining orders that underlie this petition.

C. <u>CITATION TO APPELLATE DECISION TO BE</u> REVIEWED

Petitioner Joseph Padgett requests the Washington State Supreme
Court exercise its discretion to review the Washington State Court of
Appeals, Division I's October 15, 2018 decision in Court of Appeals
Cause Number 76543-4-I affirming the superior court's denial of Mr.
Padgett's motion to terminate the Chapter 26.50 RCW orders against him.
A copy of this opinion is included as Appendix A to this Petition.

D. <u>ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW</u>

1. This matter involves an issue of substantial public interest.

Division I's opinion in this matter opens the door for issuance of long term restraining orders under Chapter 26.50 RCW in the absence of any supporting finding that domestic violence has occurred. Chapter 26.50

RCW, titled Domestic Violence Prevention, fails to require that a finding of an act of domestic violence be made before issuing a domestic violence restraint, thus there is a gap in the statutory scheme. This Court found that *Freeman* merited review as a case of first impression because of a "vacuum" in Chapter 26.50 RCW whereby the statute does not require that in the absence of a new act of domestic violence, a victim's fear of renewed violence must be reasonable.

This case results from in another gap in Chapter 26.50 RCW and gives rise to an even more undesirable result, as Division I's opinion holds that a person who has never committed any domestic violence can be subject to domestic violence restraints for an indefinite period of time. While Washington has a clear public policy of protecting domestic violence survivors, that policy has extended only to actual survivors of domestic violence and their abusers. See RCW 10.99.010 ("The purpose of this chapter is to recognize the importance of domestic violence as a serious crime against society and to assure the victim of domestic violence the maximum protection from abuse which the law and those who enforce the law can provide.")(emphasis added); see also Freeman, 169 Wn.2d at 672, 675. Here, there is no victim of domestic violence needing protection

nor is there an abuser.⁴ Is it in the substantial public interest that this Court, reading Chapter 26.50 as a whole, require a finding of an act of domestic violence before restraints under Chapter 26.50 may be imposed?

2. The opinion in this case conflicts with this Court's decision in Freeman. In *Freeman*, this Court emphasized that "[i]t is not enough that the facts may have justified the order in the past. Reasonable likelihood of imminent harm must be in the present." 169 Wn.2d at 674. Contrary to Division I's misunderstanding of the case, Mr. Padgett is not attempting to appeal or collaterally attack the already-entered restraining orders, he is simply asking that they now be terminated. Opinion at 7. His request relates only to the present need for the orders. Appellant's Opening Brief at 1-7.

In *Freeman*, this Court looked to 11 "New Jersey factors", now embedded in our statute, to determine whether a restraining order should remain permanent. 169 Wn.2d at 674-76. In light of those factors, this Court held that the ex-husband's obedience to the orders for 10 years, the

⁴ This Court has held that the absence of a finding on a factual issue gives rise to a presumption that the party with the burden of proof failed to sustain their burden on this issue. *See State v. Armenta*, 134 Wn.2d 1, 948 P.2d 1280 (1997), *Smith v. King*. 106 Wn.2d 443, 451, 722 P.2d 796 (1986). In this case, the absence of a finding of domestic violence means that no domestic violence has occurred.

lack of a minor child to fight over, lack of drug or alcohol abuse by the restrained person, lack of a criminal record for the restrained person, lack of any other protection orders against the restrained person, and the unreasonableness of the victim's claim of imminent fear (based upon innocuous unexplained minor events at her home) compelled termination of the order. 169 Wn.2d at 674-76.

Here, it has been eight years since entry of the first Chapter 26.50 order and Mr. Padgett has never violated it or any of its reissued versions. He has never committed domestic violence against anyone at any time. He has no criminal record. He has had no contact with Ms. Padgett for many years. He has no drug or alcohol problems. No orders exist against him in any other jurisdictions. Mr. Padgett has not engaged in domestic violence abuse counseling since he is not a domestic violence abuser. Ms. Padgett's claimed fear was based on her belief that Mr. Padgett violated the restraining order by (a) filing the CR 60(b) motion through his attorney, (b) placing numerous forks in her yard, and (c) placing a partially filled milk jug on her porch surrounded by rocks. CP 196-97. There is no evidence that Mr. Padgett had anything to do with the forks or the milk jug. None of Ms. Padgett's claims have gone anywhere; Mr. Padgett has never been charged with violating the restraining and protection orders.

Accordingly, Ms. Padgett's fear is objectively unreasonable, as was the claimed fear in *Freeman*.

Mr. Padgett briefed *Freeman* in the Court of Appeals and Division I cited it but failed to analyze this case under *Freeman*. As a result, the two decisions contradict one another. Should review be granted to resolve the conflict?

3. This case raises a significant question of law under the U.S. Constitution. The right to bear arms is a fundamental right guaranteed by the Second Amendment of the U.S. Constitution; it applies to this state. *State v. Ibrahim*, 164 Wn.App. 503, 514, 269 P.3d 292 (2011)(holding that a legal alien in Washington State with no criminal convictions may bear arms). Mr. Padgett has no criminal convictions and no court has found that he has ever committed misconduct of any kind. Mrs. Padgett engineered criminal charges against him as part of her divorce strategy, but they were dropped and all related orders were terminated. CP 160, 190.

When this occurred, Mr. Padgett brought a CR 60(b)(6) motion based on change of circumstances to try to get his firearms back, as the firearms portion of the orders states that Mr. Padgett may not possess firearms and requires that his ex-wife retain his firearms "until the criminal proceedings [against] him are terminated and he is allowed to possess firearms." CP 6. The failure to terminate these orders upon request

when Mr. Padgett was cleared of all criminal activity violates his Second Amendment right to bear arms. In the absence of any finding of domestic violence or other misconduct or criminal record, there is no public interest justification to balance against Mr. Padgett's fundamental constitutional right. He qualifies as the "law-abiding, responsible citizen" the United States Supreme Court envisions in *District of Columbia v. Heller*; one who has the right to "use arms in defense of hearth and home." As *Ezell v. City of Chicago* recognizes, when the person is a law-abiding, responsible citizen, "a severe burden on the core Second Amendment right of armed self-defense will require an extremely strong public-interest justification and a close fit between the government's means and its end."

E. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Ms. Padgett accused Mr. Padgett of domestic violence early in their divorce, yet the court found in 2010 that he had not committed domestic violence. *See* Appendix B. Ms. Padgett provided items to the King County Sheriff in an effort to have Mr. Padgett convicted of child sex crimes, but after investigation all the charges against him were dropped. CP 20. Commissioner Jeske then granted further temporary orders including mutual restraints and extra restraints on Mr. Padgett, including firearm restraints upon him. CP 29-31. No finding was made against Mr. Padgett.

In one form or another, the restraining and protection orders against Mr. Padgett were reissued in 2011, 2012, and 2014. CP 1-8, 36-42. Commissioner Jeske's 2011 order provided that both parties are restrained and enjoined from disturbing the peace of the other party or of any child and restrained both parties from molesting, assaulting, harassing, or stalking one another. CP 29-30. It further provided that Mr. Padgett is restrained from going onto the grounds or entering the home, work place or school of the other party or the day care or school of his son Colton Padgett. CP 30. Additionally, it restrained Mr. Padgett from knowingly coming within or knowingly remaining within (distance) 1000 feet of the home and work place of Colton Padgett or Darla Padgett. CP 30. Finally, it ordered pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(8), that Mr. Padgett may not possess a firearm or ammunition. Id. The 2011 order did not find that Mr. Padgett had committed domestic violence, nor did it reference any such finding. After Mr. Padgett was found not to have committed domestic violence in 2010, no further finding was ever made regarding domestic violence.

The 2012 Decree ordered in Paragraph 1.1 "[t]he restraining order entered by Commissioner Jeske on Sept. 26, 2011 remains in effect pending trial on the remaining matters before the court." CP 36. The 2012 order did not find that Mr. Padgett had committed domestic violence, nor

did it reference any such finding. Resolution of all other matters was reserved for a later trial. CP 38, 40.

The 2014 Decree places additional restraints on Mr. Padgett and authorizes Ms. Padgett to store his firearms until criminal charges were terminated. CP 1-5; 6-8 (FOF/COL; Decree). It provides in Paragraph 1.1 that

Respondent is restrained from knowingly remaining within 1000 feet of the home, work place of Darla Padgett or Colton Padgett as long as he is a minor. Respondent is restrained from going onto the grounds or entering the home, workplace, or school of Darla Padgett or Colton Padgett. Joseph Padgett is restrained and enjoined from molesting, assaulting, harassing, or stalking Darla Padgett and Colton Padgett. Darla Padgett may continue to store Joseph Padgett's firearms until such time as all criminal proceedings and him [sic] are terminated and he is allowed to possess firearms.

CP 6.

Paragraph 3.9 of the 2014 Decree stated

Joseph Padgett should not contact Darla Padgett in any way. Joseph Padgett should not contact Colton Padgett in any way as long as he is a minor. Violation of this order is a criminal offense under chapter 26.50 RCW and will subject a violator to arrest; any assault, drive-by shooting, or reckless endangerment that is a violation of this order is a felony. You can be arrested and prosecuted even if any person protected by this order invites or allows you to violate this order's prohibitions. You have the sole responsibility to avoid violating this order's provisions. Only the court can change this order. This order is valid and entitled to enforcement in this and all other jurisdictions.

CP 7-8. The 2014 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, entered concurrently with the Decree, state in Paragraph 3.5 that "Mr. Padgett appeared in court and signed the restraining order entered by Commissioner Jeske on September 26, 2011. This order and decree continues those exact same restraints on Mr. Padgett." CP 4. Neither the Decree nor the Findings and Conclusions contain the legend on the front page required by RCW 26.09.050(2). CP 1, 6.

In 2015, all criminal charges against Mr. Padgett were dropped and all related restraints and orders were terminated. CP 160, 190. Late in 2015, he moved under CR 60(b)(6) to have the restraining and protection orders vacated and for restoration of his firearms. CP 9-14. Relying on Ms. Padgett's continued protestations of fear related to random minor occurrences at her home and upon the court's unspecified recollections of evidence presented by Ms. Padgett at trial, the superior court found that while CR 60(b)(6) was a proper way to seek relief, there were not grounds to terminate the orders. RP 14. Mr. Padgett timely appealed to the Court of Appeals, Division I, which affirmed the superior court. Appendix A.

On appeal, Mr. Padgett brought the same arguments that he now petitions, plus a vagueness argument which he is not petitioning. The Court of Appeals held that CR 60(b)(6) was an improper method to seek relief and that further, it would not be possible for him to meet the

requirements for termination under RCW 26.50.130 even if he had filed such a motion. Opinion at 7, 10.

The Court of Appeals further held that Mr. Padgett's appeal of the denial of his CR 60(b)(6) order was actually an improper challenge to the underlying orders themselves. Opinion at 7. The Court of Appeals then incorrectly stated that Mr. Padgett's argument for relief rested solely on the dismissal of the criminal case. Opinion at 9. Characterizing Ms. Padgett's unsubstantiated claims about forks and milk jugs as Mr. Padgett's "ongoing attempts to harass her", the Court of Appeals held that Ms. Padgett had "demonstrated her continuing fear. This finding resulted in the denial of the motion to vacate and maintenance of the restraining order."

Concerning the Second Amendment issue, the Court of Appeals merely noted that a valid restraining order does not violate the Second Amendment. Opinion at 10. Mr. Padgett now petitions for review by this Court.

F. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

1. Standards of Review. This Court reviews issues regarding statutory construction *de novo*. *State v. J.M.*, 144 Wn.2d 472, 480, 29 P.3d 720 (2001). Constitutional challenges are questions of law and are also reviewed *de novo*. *Weden v. San Juan County*, 135 Wn.2d 678, 693, 958

P.2d 273 (1998). An appellate court will not overturn a trial court's decision on a motion to vacate a judgment under CR 60(b)(6) absent an abuse of discretion. *Gustafson v. Gustafson*, 54 Wn. App. 66, 69-70, 772 P.2d 1031 (1989).

2. A finding of domestic violence is a necessary prerequisite to imposition of restraints under Chapter 26.50 RCW. Throughout RCW § 26.50.060, the section on relief the court may provide when a domestic violence request is made, the statute refers to "the victim." For instance, in subsection (h) the court may "[R]estrain the respondent from having any contact with **the victim** of domestic violence or **the victim's** children or members of **the victim's** household." [Emphasis added.] Subsection (i) allows the court to "[r]estrain the respondent from harassing, following, keeping under physical or electronic surveillance, cyberstalking as defined in RCW 9.61.260, and using telephonic, audiovisual, or other electronic means to monitor the actions, location, or communication of a victim of domestic violence, the victim's children, or members of the victim's household." [Emphasis added.] There is no victim unless a court makes a finding that there is a victim, and for there to be a victim there must be a finding of some form of domestic violence.

Further, RCW 26.50.130(e) provides that "[r]egardless of whether there is a substantial change in circumstances, the court may decline to

that resulted in the issuance of the protection order were of such severity that the order should not be terminated." [Emphasis added.] From these portions of the statute it is clear that, reading Ch. 26.50 as a whole, a finding of a specific act of domestic violence and a finding that a person is a victim of domestic violence are contemplated as prerequisites to imposition of orders under Ch. 26.50.

Other states that have considered this issue have arrived at the same common-sense conclusion. Iowa has clarified in *Wilker v. Wilker*, 630 N.W.2d 590, 596 (Iowa 2001) that to impose domestic violence orders, domestic violence must be shown by a preponderance of the evidence. South Dakota has explicitly stated that "[d]omestic abuse is a prerequisite for the issuance of a protection order under SDCL 25-10-5." *Trumm v. Cleaver*, 841 N.W.2d 22, 24 (S.D. 2013). In Kansas, KRS 403.750 clearly requires a finding that domestic violence and abuse have occurred as a prerequisite to entry of a DVO.

Since a superior court and Court of Appeals of this state have approved the imposition of domestic violence restraints in the absence of a finding of domestic violence and the presence of a failure to prove that domestic violence occurred, this Court should accept review to clarify that

a finding of domestic violence is a necessary prerequisite to imposition of restraints under Chapter 26.50 RCW.

3. This case undercuts this Court's holding in Freeman and this Court should accept review to confirm and clarify Freeman, as the lower courts are not conforming to its authority. In Freeman, the ex-husband moved to modify or terminate the permanent protection order against him eight years after it was issued. 169 Wn.2d at 669. Like Mr. Padgett, he had never violated the order. Id. Yet the ex-wife claimed that she remained in constant fear of him because of "ongoing disturbances at her home of unknown cause," such as repositioning of the driver's seat in her car, missing tools, a hole in her bedroom wall, reappearance of a flower vase on her dresser, and receiving her ex-husband's mail at her house. Id.

While a commissioner found the ex-wife's fears to be "reasonable" based on findings of domestic eight years ago, the Court of Appeals reversed. *Id.* at 670. This Court agreed, analyzing the case under factors which are now embodied in RCW 26.50.130(3)(c)(i)-(ix). As our Supreme Court emphasized, the bottom line is that the respondent's fear must be based on "a reasonable threat of imminent harm ... [i]t is not enough that the facts may have justified the order in the past. Reasonable likelihood of imminent harm must be in the present." *Id.* at 676. Because the *Freeman*

respondent's fear was not reasonably based in the present, the commissioner's denial of the ex-husband's motion to modify or terminate the permanent protection order rested on untenable grounds. *Id.* This Court affirmed the Court of Appeals' reversal of the commissioner's order.

Mr. Padgett's case is analogous to *Freeman*, yet it is an even more egregious abuse of discretion. As in *Freeman*, the order was put in place more than five years previously at the time of the motion, the respondent had never violated the order, and the wife's claim of current fear was based upon unexplained, innocuous happenings at her home. Our Supreme Court also considered it important that in *Freeman*, the children had become adults and there were no longer any parenting issues over which the parties might battle. <u>Id</u>. at 668, 675. Here, as in *Freeman*, the children are now adults and they do not, in the words of the Supreme Court "present[] ongoing opportunities for conflict." *Id*. at 675.

Yet Mr. Padgett's case is a more egregious abuse of discretion than was *Freeman* because in *Freeman*, the respondent had been found eight years previously to have committed domestic violence. *Id.* at 668. Here, Mr. Padgett has never been found to have committed domestic violence and has never, since 2010 when the first restraints were entered against him, been found to have violated any of the restraining or protection orders. Because the only finding on domestic violence that has been

entered is a failure to find domestic violence, this case presents an even more serious abuse of discretion than did *Freeman*. It must be reversed.

4. Failure to terminate the firearms restrictions violates Mr. Padgett's fundamental Second Amendment right to bear arms. He qualifies as the "law-abiding, responsible citizen" the United States Supreme Court envisions in *District of Columbia v. Heller*; one who has the right to "use arms in defense of hearth and home." A former police officer, he is *Ezell*'s "law-abiding, responsible citizen" and there is no justification for infringing on his fundamental constitutional right to bear arms. The complete ban on bearing arms is "a severe burden on the core Second Amendment right of armed self-defense" and there is no justification for such a severe burden. *Ezell* at 708. This Court should accept review and uphold Mr. Padgett's fundamental Second Amendment right.

G. CONCLUSION

Mr. Padgett's case presents an excellent opportunity to clarify a significant gap in Ch. 26.50 RCW and provide needed guidance on the requirement of an act of domestic violence as a prerequisite for issuing restraints under RCW 26.50. Division I has undermined this Court's holding in *Freeman* and review should be accepted to revitalize

Freeman's holding. And this Court should accept review to elucidate the unconstitutionality of infringing the constitutional right to bear arms in the absence of any evidence of wrongdoing or misconduct.

For all these reasons, Mr. Padgett respectfully requests this court accept review and reverse the decision of the Court of Appeals, Division I in this matter.