FILED Court of Appeals Division I State of Washington 12/31/2018 2:49 PM

96513-7

No. 76543-4-1

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

### DIVISION ONE

## JOSEPH PADGETT,

Appellant,

v.

## DARLA PADGETT

Respondent.

## RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEW BY THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

### BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Darla Padgett Pro Se

1819 211TH Way NE Sammamish, WA 98075 Actiontkr@aol.com 408/768.5136

## **

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

### IV. ARGUMENT

## A. The Court Should Deny Petitioner's Request for Judicial Notice and Review.

Joseph Padgett improperly attempted to circumvent the statutory process for terminating the underlying protection and restraining order, when he filed the CR60(B)(6) Motion to Vacate. Him now bringing this same Motion up for Review before The WA Supreme Court, is just a further extension of his violation of the Court's statutes. It is also part and parcel of his ongoing pattern of continually filing Motions to force Darla

Padgett to spend resources and miss work, as she has to respond. Even with a Protective Order in place, he manages to perpetuate his pattern of harassment, all while portraying his innocence. This disrespect for WA law fails to raise any issue of public interest.

B. This Court need not do a legal review of Chapter 26.50 RCW. Petitioner claims that Division I's opinion opens the door for issuance of long-term restraining orders under Chapter 26.50 RCW, in absence of any supporting finding that domestic violence has occurred. Further, he claims that Chapter 26.50 RCW creates a "GAP in the statutory scheme". In re Marriage of Freeman, 169 Wn.wd 664, 671, 239 P.3d 557 (2010); RCW 26.50.060(2), (3); RCW 26.50.130(1). Reviewing courts should apply an abuse of discretion standard and "cannot substitute [their] judgment for that of the trial court unless the trial court's decision rests on unreasonable or untenable grounds." State v. Powell, 126 Wash.2d 244,258,893 P.2d 615 (1995); Wilson v. Horsley, 137 Wash. 2d 500, 505, 974 P.2d 316 (1999). " ' A trial court's decision is manifestly unreasonable if it adopts a view that no reasonable person would take." Id. at 669, 230 P.ed 583 (internal quotation marks omitted) (quoting In re Pers. Restraint of Duncan, 167 Wash.2d 398, 402-03, 219 P.3d 666 (2009)).

Pursuant to RCW 26.50.010 (3)(a)

"Domestic violence: means: (a) Physical harm, bodily injury, assault or the infliction of fear of imminent physical harm, bodily injury or assault, between family or household members; The United States Department of Justice defines domestic violence as a pattern of abusive

behavior in any relationship that is used by one partner to gain or maintain power and control over another intimate partner. Domestic violence can be physical, sexual, emotional, economic, or psychological actions or threats of actions that influence another person. Evidence of an actual physical attack is not a requirement. Darla Padgett provided a preponderance of evidence of Mr. Padgett's volatile outbursts, destruction of property, endangerment of her and her son, abandonment, deviant activities surrounding pornography, propensities to record her without her knowledge of consent, his ongoing emotional abuse and the economic hardships he perpetuated and continued to in order to destroy her financially even though she was the sole provider for their son. Claiming that Mr. Padgett never committed Domestic Violence 34 times in his Appellate Brief doesn't make it so. Judges and Commissioners have maintained the restraining order and even extended the physical space to 1,000 feet because Mr. Padgett continued his propensity to record Ms. Padgett without her knowledge or consent and then tried to use those recordings to damage her. No logical person would think that dressing someone known to be mentally ill in Darla's own wedding dress, veil and a blindfold. Then proceeding to have sex with them while pointing a gun at their head and at times putting it in their mouth, is not an act that would create fear in Darla Padgett. She produced the Polaroid pictures that JP took of himself doing it. She produced the vile pictures he created of the minor neighbor. She produced declarations from the Detective who found the vile picture Joe Padgett had created of her minor God Daughter. Mr. Padgett's actions are not just in the past. He continues causing her

stress and economic hardship by making frivolous filings full of false accusations. Now, he claims to have complied with the protective order some 9 years. Again, he avoids crossing the line just enough to avoid jail. Yet he violated her privacy and tried convincing their son to take her property without her consent or knowledge **in early 2018**. Darla, family & friends all fear him. The victim does not need to prove a new act of domestic violence if the present likelihood of recurrence is reasonable. See Spence, 103 Wash.App. at 333, 12 P.ed 1030; Barber, 136 Wash. App. at 513, 516, 150 P. 3d 124.

Consider for a moment, the lengths that WA Civil Family Court goes to, in an effort to preserve the relationship between Parent and Child. Darla Padgett presented enough evidence to have the Courts deny ANY contact between Joseph and their son. Not even with supervision. There was evidence presented alright. All Joseph Padgett does is perpetuate litigation. The truth, real evidence, laws and procedures, none of that matters to him. It is just the maintaining a fight. Wasting this Court's resources are NOT in the public's interest.

C. The Division I opinion does not conflict with this Court's Decision in Freeman.

In re <u>Marriage of Freeman</u>, 169 Wn.2d664, 674, 239 P. 3d 557 (2010)(emphasis omitted). The petitioner bears no burden of proving current reasonable fear of imminent harm by the respondent. RCW 26.50.130(3)(2). But the facts must support a finding that the petitioners fear of immanent harm is reasonable. Freeman, 169Wn. 2d at 674. "The facts supporting a protection order must reasonably relate to physical

harm, bodily injury, assault, or fear of imminent harm. It is not enough that the facts may have justified the orders in the past. Reasonable likelihood of imminent harm must be present. "Freeman, 169 Wn.2d at 674 (emphasis omitted).

Again, evidence was provided and the Court, at its' discretion, upheld the restraining order and denied the Motion to Vacate. The Division I Opinion considered both the facts of evidence and the fact that Joseph Padgett did not follow WA laws and in failing to appeal original order. Then attempting to now raise untimely arguments. Furthermore, not following specific procedures for modification or termination of the underlying order via RCW 26.50.130 and DVPA procedures. No egregious flaw in the law that merits review for public interest. Just egregious flaw on the part of Joseph Padgett to follow the law.

D. There is no significant violation of the U.S. Constitution.

Joseph claims that there is a significant question of law under the U.W. Constitution because the restraining order amounts to a permanent ban on his right to bear arms. Yes, The Second Amendment "elevates above all other interests the right of law-abiding, responsible citizens to use arms in defense of hearth and home." <u>District of Columbia v. Heller</u>, 554 U.S. 570, 635, 128 S. Ct. 2783, 171 L.Ed.2d637 (2008). However, a valid restraining order does not violate the Second Amendment right to bear arms. Under 18 USC 922(g)(8), a person may not possess firearms or ammunition if subject to a court order that:

(A) Was issued after a hearing of which such person received Actual notice, and at which such person had an opportunity to Participate; (B) restrains such person from harassing, stalking, or threatening an intimate partner of such person or child of such intimate partner or person, or engaging in other conduct that would place an intimate partner in reasonable fear of bodily injury to the partner or child; and (C)(k) includes a finding that such person represents a credible threat to the physical safety of such intimate partner or child; or (ii) by its terms explicitly prohibits the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against such intimate partner or child that would reasonably be expected to cause bodily injury.

The September 2011 restraining order included a provision based on 18 USC 922(g)(8). Therefore, because a valid restraining order exists against Joseph, his right to bear arms is not violated.

E. There is no denial of Due Process

Joseph Padgett signed the restraining order in September 2011, and he did not appeal it. He failed to appear at his dissolution proceedings and, again, he did not appeal the terms of restraint and protection entered in the dissolution decree of 2014. Therefore, he was never denied Due Process.

### V. CONCLUSION

The Court of Appeals affirmed the denial of the CR 60(F) Motion to Vacate. Their opinion outlined his lack of following WA law. He continues his 9 year pattern of abusing The Court's resources and procedures by circumventing them in his attempt to raise untimely arguments. Further, he continues to use the Court system to harass, vex and annoy Darla Padgett. As a Pro Se, Darla Padgett cannot ask for

fees. However, she does request that this Court Deny Review and sanction Joseph Padgett in an amount they deem reasonable.